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PART1
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”) contains forward-looking statements that have been made pursuant to the provisions of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and
concern matters that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from historical results or from those projected in the forward-
looking statements. Discussions containing forward-looking statements may be found in the material set forth under “Business,” “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in other sections of this Annual Report. Words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “expect,”
“plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue” or similar words are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all
forward-looking statements contain these words. Although we believe that our opinions and expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable
as of the date of this Annual Report, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements, and our actual results may differ
substantially from the views and expectations set forth in this Annual Report. We expressly disclaim any intent or obligation to update any forward-looking
statements after the date hereof, to conform such statements to actual results or to changes in our opinions or expectations.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Our History

Brekford Corp. is a homeland security technology service provider of fully integrated vehicle upfitting and installation services, rugged computer and video
technology and automated traffic safety solutions geared towards mission critical operations. Depending upon the context, the terms “BFDI,” “Brekford Corp.,”
“Company,” “we,” “our,” and “us,” refers to Brekford Corp. The Company (formerly California Cyber Design, Inc. (“CCDI”)) was incorporated in Delaware on
May 27, 1998 and changed its name to American Financial Holdings, Inc. (Pink Sheets:“AFHI”) on August 11, 2004. AFHI, a publicly-traded corporation with no
operations announced the completion of its share exchange transaction with Pelican Mobile Computers, Inc., a Maryland corporation (“Pelican Mobile™), on
January 6, 2006. Pelican exchanged each issued and outstanding share of Pelican Mobile Computers (1,000 shares issued and outstanding at the time of the share
exchange) for 25,000 shares of AFHI on a post-split basis (the “Share Exchange™) with an aggregate of 25,000,000 shares of Common Stock of AFHI issued to the
former shareholders of Pelican Mobile. At the time of the Share Exchange, the existing stockholders of AFHI retained 5,512,103 shares of AFHI’s outstanding
Common Stock after the cancellation of approximately 2,549,000 shares of Common Stock. As a result, the former shareholders of Pelican Mobile became the majority
stockholders of AFHI. Under the terms of the Share Exchange, the Company changed its name to Tactical Solution Partners, Inc. (Pink Sheets: “TTSR”). On April 25,
2008, the Company’s stockholders approved a proposal to change its name from Tactical Solution Partners, Inc. to Brekford International Corp. to better reflect our
business strategy. Subsequently on July 9, 2010, the Company’s stockholders approved a proposal to change our name from Brekford International Corp. to Brekford
Corp. On October 27, 2010, the board of directors approved the merger of our subsidiary Pelican Mobile, with the holding company, Brekford Corp., pursuant to
Section 253 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. The merger became effective upon the filing of a Certificate of Ownership and Merger with the
State of Delaware (and the appropriate Articles of Merger with the State of Maryland), pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Merger. The merger
documents were filed with the respective states of Delaware and Maryland on October 28, 2010. Effective upon the completion of the merger the corporate name of
the Company, which is the surviving entity in the merger, remained as Brekford Corp. The operations of Pelican Mobile were continued by the Company without
interruption following the merger.




Our Business

Brekford Corp. (OTCBB; OTCQB: BFDI) is a homeland security technology service provider of fully integrated vehicle upfitting and installation services, rugged
computer and video technology and automated traffic safety solutions geared towards mission critical operations. For more than a decade we have provided services
to branches of the U.S. military, various federal entities and numerous security and public safety agencies throughout the United States. We provide these agencies
with an end-to-end suite of mobile communications, information technology, vehicle upfitting services, and automated traffic photo enforcement solutions that are
designed to streamline procurement processes and offer maximum functionality to their day to day operations.

Brekford is a one-stop shop for vehicle upfitting, cutting edge technology and installation services. We provide ruggedized mobile computers and video systems,
bumper-to-bumper vehicle modification products and services for homeland security, law enforcement, fire and emergency vehicles. The Brekford 360 Degree (360
Degree") approach provides our customers with a one-stop upfitting, cutting edge technology and installation service. The 360 Degree approach is the only stop our
customers need to make to purchase law enforcement vehicles (GM, Ford, Dodge), have them upfitted with lights, sirens, radio communication and rugged IT
technology and then have them "ready fo roll". Our 360 Degree engineered bumper-to-bumper vehicle solution, our commitment to top quality, fast reliable service,
along with our streamlined purchasing process is why we believe Brekford is the best all-around vehicle and automated traffic enforcement solutions provider.

Products and Services

Law enforcement agency, fire department and EMS personnel have unique requirements for fleet vehicle upfitting and IT equipment to include characteristics such as
ruggedness and reliability. The equipment must be able to work in extreme environments that include high levels of vibration and shock, wide temperature ranges,
varying humidity, electromagnetic interference and voltage and current transients. Our rugged and non-rugged IT products and mobile data communication systems
provide public safety workers with the unique functionalities necessary to enable effective response to emergency situations.

We distinguish ourselves by truly being a “one-stop shop” for vehicle upfitting, cutting edge technology, and installation services. Unlike our competitors, we
provide customers with one place to purchase law enforcement vehicles that are not only upfitted with the traditional lights and sirens but also with rugged IT
hardware and communication equipment.

For more than a decade, we have been a distributor for most major brands in the mobile technology arena. We handle everything from Panasonic Toughbooks® and
Arbitrator® digital video systems to emergency lighting systems and wireless technology. We believe we have all of the high-end products our customers need to
handle their day to day operations and protect the public they serve. Every product we sell is tested by highly trained technicians and guaranteed to work in even the
most extreme conditions. We specialize in seamlessly incorporating custom-built solutions within existing networks. We deliver our end-to-end solutions with service
programs that work for agencies large and small, from tum-key drop shipping to municipal leases. Our commitment is to design and deliver solutions that meet or
exceed industry standards for safety, ergonomics, reliability, serviceability and uniformity.

360 Degree Vehicle Solution

The 360 Degree vehicle solution provides complete vehicle upfitting, mobile data and video solutions including municipal financing and leasing services for
agencies. The 360 Degree vehicle solutions approach provides customers with a one-stop upfitting, cutting edge technology and installation service. We provide
and install most major brands of law enforcement vehicle equipment. Our mission is to provide and install equipment that ensures safe and efficient vehicles while
incorporating the latest technological advances. We adhere to strict quality control procedures and provide comprehensive services. The Brekford certified
technician team provides our customers with the highest level of expertise and service from inception to completion, including maintenance and upgrades.




Automatic Traffic Enforcement - Photo Speed Enforcement

Automatic traffic enforcement systems are one of a wide range of measures that are effective at reducing vehicle speeds and crashes. The automated speed
enforcement (ASE) system is an enforcement technique with one or more motor vehicle sensors producing recorded images of motor vehicles traveling at speeds
above a defined threshold. Images captured by the ASE system are processed and reviewed in an office environment and violation notices are mailed to the
registered owner of the identified vehicle. ASE is a method of traffic speed enforcement that is used to detect speeding violations and record identifying information
about the vehicle and/or driver. Violation evidence is processed and reviewed in an office environment and violation notices are delivered to the registered owners of
identified vehicles after the alleged violation occurs. ASE, if used, is one technology available to law enforcement as a supplement and not a replacement for
traditional enforcement operations. Evaluations of ASE, both internationally and in the United States have identified some advantages over traditional speed
enforcement methods. These include:

- High rate of violation detection. ASE units can detect and record multiple violations per minute. This can provide a strong deterrent effect by increasing
drivers’ perceived likelihood of being cited for speeding,

- Physical safety of ASE operators and motorists. ASE can operate at locations where roadside traffic stops are dangerous or infeasible, and where traffic
conditions are unsafe for police vehicles to enter the traffic stream and stop suspected violators. With ASE there is normally no vehicle pursuit or
confrontation with motorists. ASE might also reduce the occurrence of traffic congestion due to driver distraction caused by traffic stops on the roadside.

- Fairness of operation. Violations are recorded for all vehicles traveling in excess of the enforcement speed threshold.
- Efficient use of resources. ASE can act as a “force multiplier,” enhancing the influence of limited traffic enforcement staff and resources.
In Car Mobile Video System and Rugged Mobile Data Solutions

We develop integrated, interoperable, feature-rich mobile systems enabling first responders, police, fire and EMS, to obtain and exchange information in real-time.
The rapid dissemination of real-time information is critical to determine and assure timely and precise resource allocation by public sector decision makers. As a
premiere Panasonic toughbook partner, we augment these rugged laptops by designing and manufacturing vehicle mounting systems and docking stations for in-
vehicle communication equipment. From rugged laptop computers, tablets and hand-helds, GPS terminals, two-way radios, and full console systems, we provide
ergonomically sound mounting products with full port replication.

Toughbook Arbitrator is a rugged revolution in law enforcement video capture. The Toughbook Arbitrator is a rugged and durable mobile digital video system. The
fully-integrated system offers unparalleled video capture (up to 360 degrees), storage and transfer, and is designed to work with back-end software for seamless
video management, including archiving and retrieving.

An Automatic License Plate Reader (ALPR) is an image-processing technology used to identify vehicles by their license plates. License Plate Readers (LPRs) can
record plates at about one per second at speeds of up to 100 MPH and often utilize infrared cameras for clarity and to facilitate reading at any time of day or night.
The data collected can either be processed in real-time, at the site of the read, or it can be transmitted to remote centers and processed at a later time.




Electronic Ticketing System - Slick-Ticket

Many of today’s law enforcement agencies are struggling to balance the increasing demand from their citizens for more services with limited and/or declining
budgets. One of the easiest and most cost-effective ways agencies can address this issue is by deploying an electronic ticketing, or E-Ticketing solution. Automating
the ticket issuing and processing system can significantly decrease cost, increase productivity and improve officer safety. Brekford offers a unique functionality that
streamlines the data entry process even further. For agencies that have deployed a mobile data system on their mobile computers that enables officers to run
background queries from national (NCIC), state, and local databases, the Brekford solution captures the data from these mobile query files and auto-populates all of
the requisite data into the citation form on the screen. Brekford’s Slick-Ticket™ product is a fully portable over the seat organizer for public safety vehicles,
specially designed to house a printer and scanner to allow law enforcement officers to quickly access driver's license and registration information as well as issue
tickets, warnings and citations. -

Purchasing and Order Fulfillment

We work with manufacturers and distributors to secure the lowest cost possible while taking advantage of any available incentives in order to maximize product
margins, provide competitive pricing and minimize delivery time to our customers. Typically, once our sales persons receive orders from our customers, we then
purchase the required products from manufacturers such as Panasonic and then sell (and where necessary install) the products to our customers.

Business Strategy

The primary products and services from which Brekford has earned revenue and anticipates we will continue to earn revenue is through our product and service
lines. These include rugged mobile computers, vehicle mounting systems, video systems, vehicle upfitting or outfitting, electronic ticketing system-slick ticket and
installation and maintenance services of all the above components in first responder law enforcement vehicles. Additionally, in April 2010 we launched our automatic
traffic enforcement program providing speed and red light camera services. The public safety communications market is a $4.2 billion market with the rugged mobile
technology market growing at 10% per annum. Police, fire and EMS personnel have unique requirements for communication, ruggedness, reliability and quality. Their
equipment must be able to work in extreme environments that include high levels of vibration and shock, wide temperature ranges, varying humidity, electromagnetic
interference and voltage and current transients. Furthermore, public safety personnel and emergency responders are demanding tailored mobile communication
solutions that enable real-time access and exchange of critical data to assure timely and precise resource allocation by public sector decision makers. Brekford’s in-
vehicle technology and communication solutions provide public safety workers and emergency responders with the unique functionalities necessary to enable
effective response to emergency situations. The automatic traffic enforcement business including speed and red-light cameras enforcement is a market by itself. The
U.S Marketscape for red-light systems is estimated at 20,000 to 30,000 systems and the market for speed cameras is estimated at 35,000 to 50,000 systems. The
industry penetration as of February 2010 is 18% for red light systems and 2% for speed systems. According to the Insurance Institute for Highway Safety
(www.iihs.org), 22 states have currently adopted legislation for red light systems and eight states have speed camera legislation. We believe we have already made a
foothold in this business within a relatively short time by securing contracts with two municipalities in Maryland and our goal is to become a major player in this
business concentrating initially within the Mid-Atlantic region. There are only a handful of competitors that are currently providing automatic traffic enforcement
services with three companies that are considered leaders of this industry. Because we believe we possess a technical advantage and reputable customer service we
anticipate competing with these leaders within a relatively short time.

The majority of our recent sales and services have occurred within the Mid-Atlantic region, which is comprised of the states of Maryland, Virginia, Delaware, New
Jersey and Pennsylvania. However, our goal is to expand our products and services to customers nationwide, especially with respect to our automated traffic
enforcement business.




Competition

Although we operate in an industry that has experienced substantial growth in recent years, it is also characterized by extensive fragmentation and intense
competition. As such, larger competitors may have greater buying power and therefore may be able to offer better pricing, which is one of the key factors in
determining whether a contract will be awarded by local, state and federal agencies with limited budgets. In addition, although the majority of our sales are to
government agencies and other government contractors with historically stable operating budgets, the significant economic downturn and recession has had and will
most likely continue to have a detrimental effect on our rate of growth and, if long-term, an adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.

To address these competitive pressures and industry trends, we intend to grow revenues by:
Offering an expanded platform of products and higher-end technical services to our existing customers;
Increasing our customer base by expanding our offerings into additional regions;
Offering 360 Degree one-stop shop for “smart” law enforcement vehicle and municipal lease/financing options on full vehicle build-outs;
Using our placement on the General Services Administration (“GSA”) Schedule 84, a preferred, pre-negotiated contract that provides significant revenue

opportunities from federal, state and local governments, which, along with the passage of the Local Preparedness Acquisition Act, management

believes will benefit our upfitting group by opening up our products and services to federal, state and local governments with which we have not done
business before;

Increasing installation sales of Automatic Traffic Enforcement - Photo Speed Enforcement. The global economic environment may present opportunities
and challenges in the year ahead, yet municipalities will still need to address road safety issues and photo-enforcement is a crucial tool in that task; and

We intend to continue to invest in research and development to ensure that out technologies remain at the forefront of the industry.

Customers

During the year ended December 31, 2010, there were two customers each of which had total sales greater than 10% of total net sales. Accounts receivable due from
three customers amounted to 22.7%, 18.4 % and 18.0% respectively, of total accounts receivable at December 31, 2010. During the year ended December 31, 2010,
sales to government and commercial customers represented 94.2% and 5.8% of net sales for the year, respectively.

Employees

As of February 4, 2011, we employed 28 full-time and no part-time employees. We have never had a work stoppage, and none of our employees are represented by
collective bargaining agreements. We anticipate hiring additional employees to ensure timely delivery of customer projects and services, as necessary. Additionally,
we intend to use the services of independent consultants and contractors to perform various professional services, when appropriate. We believe that this use of
third-party service providers may enhance our ability to contain general and administrative expenses.




Corporate Information
Our principal executive offices are located at 7020 Dorsey Road, Suite C, Hanover, Maryland 21076, and our telephone number is (443) 557-0200, www.brekford.com.
Available Information

Our intermet address is www.brekford.com. We provide, free of charge, on the Investor Relations page of our website access to our annual report on Form 10-K and
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or fumished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). Information appearing on our website is not incorporated by reference and is not a part of this report.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters and first responder technology integration center is located in Hanover, Maryland in an approximately 22,000 square foot office and
warehouse facility which is leased at various monthly rates for a 92-month term expiring on January 15, 2015. The Company also Jeases approximately 2,500 square
feet of office space from Peppermill Properties, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company (“Peppermill”). Peppermill is owned and managed by Chandra (C.B.) Brechin
and Scott Rutherford, both officers, directors and principal stockholders of the Company. On June 1, 2010, the Company entered into a three-year lease with
Peppermill. This space is used for the expansion of business. The total minimum lease payments due under the Company’s lease agreements are $940,062.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is not involved in any material pending legal proceeding. The Company may be involved in litigation and other legal proceedings from time to time in
the ordinary course of its business. The Company believes the ultimate resolution of these ordinary course litigation matters will not have a material effect on the
Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

PART I
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

As of February 15, 2011, there were 40,580,513 shares of Common Stock outstanding held by approximately 42 stockholders of record, solely based upon the count
our transfer agent provided us as of that date. This number does not include:

any beneficial owners of Common Stock whose shares are held in the names of various dealers, clearing agencies, banks, brokers and other fiduciaries,
or

broker-dealers or other participants who hold or clear shares directly or indirectly through the Depository Trust Company, or its nominee, Cede & Co.




On January 30, 2008, our Common Stock began trading on the OTCBB under the ticker symbol “BFDI”. Prior to January 30, 2008, our Common Stock had been quoted
over-the counter on the Pink Sheets LLC automated electronic quotation service under the ticker symbol “TTSR”. Since April 2010, our Common Stock has also been
quoted on the OTCQB tier of the OTC Markets under the ticker symbol “BFDI”. Our Common Stock is not listed on any national or regional securities exchange.

The following table sets forth, for the periods presented, the high and low bid price ranges of our Common Stock as reported on the OTCBB .. The over-the-counter
market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

High Low

_Second Quaﬁer

- T
Fourth Quarter
Dividends

We have never declared or paid dividends on our Common Stock. We intend to use retained earnings, if any, for the operation and expansion of our business, and
therefore do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

In addition, the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware prohibits us from declaring and paying a dividend on our Common Stock at a time when we do not
have either (as defined under that law):

a surplus, or, if we do not have a surplus,

net profit for the year in which the dividend is declared and for the immediately preceding year.




Equity Compensation Plan

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2010 with respect to employee compensation plans under which our equity securities are authorized for
issuance.

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available
Number of for Future
Secnrities Issuance Under
to be Issued Weighted— Equity
Upon Average Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of Plans
Outstanding Outstanding (Excluding
Options, Options, Securities
Warrants and Warrants and Reflected
Rights Rights in Column (a))
Plan Category Column (¢)

Column (a) Column (b)
« i

= e

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
There were no repurchases of Common Stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2010:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of Maximum
shares Number of
Purchased as Shares that
Part of Publicly may yet be
Total Number of Announced Purchased
Securities Average Price Plans or Under the Plans
Purchased Paid per Share Programs or Programs

On September 7, 2010, the Company issued a press release announcing that its board of directors authorized a stock repurchase program permitting the Company to
repurchase up to $500,000 in shares of its outstanding Common Stock over the next 12 months. The shares of Common Stock may be purchased from time to time in
open market transactions or in privately negotiated transactions at the Company's discretion.




Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

Except as provided herein, all unregistered sales of securities issued during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 have been previously reported on the Company’s
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or current reports on Form 8-K.

On November 26, 2010, we issued 500,000 shares of Common Stock to our vice president of finance, Tin Khin, in consideration for past services rendered, pursuant to
a restricted stock agreement between the Company and Mr. Khin under our 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. The issuance of securities described was exempt from
registration under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) in reliance upon Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and/or Regulation D promulgated thereunder as
transactions by an issuer not involving a public offering. The securities are restricted securities for purposes of the Securities Act. A legend was placed on the
certificate representing the securities providing that the securities have not been registered under the Securities Act and cannot be sold or otherwise transferred
without an effective registration or an exemption therefrom.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the notes
thereto and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report.

This section contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to various factors, risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those reflected in these forward-looking statements. Further, as a result of these factors, risks and uncertainties, the forward-looking
events may not occur. Relevant factors, risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those discussed in “Item 1. Business,” and elsewhere in this Annual
Report. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s beliefs and opinions as of the date of this
Annual Report. We are not obligated to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Overview

We are a homeland security technology service provider of fully integrated vehicle upfitting and installation services, rugged computer and video technology and
automated traffic safety solutions geared towards mission critical operations. For more than a decade we have provided services to branches of the U.S. military,
various federal entities and numerous security and public safety agencies throughout the United States. We provide these agencies with an end-to-end suite of
rugged mobile communications, information technology, vehicle upfitting services, and automated traffic photo enforcement solutions that are designed to streamline
procurement processes and offer maximum functionality to their day to day operations.

Brekford is a one-stop shop for vehicle upfitting, cutting edge technology and installation services. We provide ruggedized mobile computers and video systems,
bumper-to-bumper vehicle modification products and services for homeland security, law enforcement, fire and emergency vehicles. The 360 Degree approach
provides our customers with a one-stop upfitting, cutting edge technology and installation service. The 360 Degree approach is the only stop our customers need to
make to purchase law enforcement vehicles (GM, Ford, Dodge), have them upfitted with lights, sirens, radio communication and rugged IT technology and then have
them “ready to roll". The Company also provides a 360 Degree approach to automatic traffic enforcement from hardware, equipment, installation and including the
back office operations for processing, collection and disbursement of fines due to violations. Automatic traffic safety enforcement covers speed and red light
violations. Our 360 Degree engineered bumper-to-bumper vehicle solution, our commitment to top quality fast reliable service, along with our streamlined purchasing
process is why we believe Brekford is the best all-around rugged mobile communications, information technology, vehicle upfitting services, and automated traffic
safety solutions provider.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Pronouncements

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires us to make estimates and
judgments affecting the reporting amounts of assets and liabilities, expenses and related disclosures. We base our estimates on historical experience, our knowledge
of economic and market factors and various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. We may also engage third party specialists to
assist us in formulating estimates when considered necessary. Estimates and judgments used in the preparation of our financial statements are, by their nature,
uncertain and unpredictable and depend upon, among other things, many factors outside of our control, such as demand for our products and economic conditions.
Accordingly, our estimates and judgments may prove to be different from actual amounts that may only be determined upon the outcome of one or more confirming
events and actual results may differ, perhaps significantly, from these estimates under different estimates, assumptions or conditions. We believe the critical
accounting policies below are affected by estimates, assumptions and judgments used in the preparation of our financial statements.

Accounts Receivable Allowance

Accounts receivable are carried at estimated net realizable value. The Company has a policy of reserving for uncollectable accounts based on its best estimate of the
amount of probable credit losses in its existing accounts receivable. The Company calculates the allowance based on a specific analysis of past due balances. Past
due status is based on how recently payments have been received by customers. Actual collection experience has not differed significantly from the Company’s
estimates, due primarily to credit and collections practices and the financial strength of its customers.




Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when all four basic criteria are met (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery or installation has been completed,
(iii) the customer accepts and verifies receipt, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured. The Company considers delivery to its customers to have occurred at the
time in which products are delivered and/or installation work is completed and the customer acknowledges its acceptance of the work. For automatic traffic
enforcements, the Company recognizes revenues on the date that the Company determines a valid violation occurred.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method to account for income taxes. Income tax expense includes income taxes currently payable and deferred taxes arising from
temporary differences between financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred income taxes are measured using the enacted tax rates and
laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the

amount expected to be realized. Income tax expense, if any, consists of the taxes payable for the current period. Valuation allowances are established when the
realization of deferred tax assets are not considered more likely than not.

Results of Operations
Comparative Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

The following tables summarize selected items from the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended December 31, 2009.

Year Ended December 31, Decrease
2010 2009 S i R
o 11608828781 14557241 (294841390 . H0.9)%
9,698,228 11,918,416 (2,220,188 ) (18.6)%

19106005 °§
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638,82578 ..

Revenues

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010 were $1 1,608,828 compared to $14,557,241 for the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of $2,948.413 or 20.3%,
primarily due to a decrease in sale of laptops, modems and installation services during the year ended December 31, 2010 due to a tightening market for laptops and
cuts in federal, state and local government budgets for equipment and vehicle purchases.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $9,698,228 compared to $11,918,416 for the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of $2,220,188 or 18.6%,
primarily due to the decrease in sales of laptops and installations and an increase in vehicle upfitting services with higher gross profit margin and also due to a new
revenue stream from the automatic traffic enforcement program starting in the fourth quarter of 2010.
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Expenses

Year Ended December 31, Decrease
2010 2009 3 %
OPERA'ITNG EXPENSES
S 203 3 97,192 ]
834,122, !111 180) 511 !°o

S0 119440 (08373)

Salaries and Related Expenses

Salaries and wages for the year ended December 31, 2010 amounted to $960,285 compared to $1,057,477 for the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of $97,192
or 9.2%. The decrease is primarily due to tighter control in hiring employees as well as the elimination of a third party professional employer organization services.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010 were $834,122 compared to $945,302 for the year ended December 31, 2009, a
decrease of $111,180 or 11.8%. The decrease is primarily due to the controlled spending and certain cost cutting measures which were continued in the year ended
December 31, 2010. A portion of the total operating expenses consisted of initial set up expenses incurred for the automatic traffic enforcement program.

Other Expense and Income

Year Ended December 31, (Decrease)/Increase

2010 2009 3 %

Total other (expense) incom S (108376) 8 710 5 (130087)

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 were $127,383 compared to $35,372 for the year ended December 31, 2009 an increase of $92,011 or 260.1%. The

increase was primarily due to Company financing the transaction from the proceeds of convertible promissory notes issued on November 9, 2009 by the Company in
favor of three directors of the Company, in the respective principal amounts of $250,000, $250,000 and $200,000 (each, a “Promissory Note, and together, the
“Promissory Notes”). Each Promissory Note bears 12% interest per annum. A portion of the interest expense also consisted of certain equipment and vehicles the
Company financed under separate non-cancelable equipment loan and security agreements.

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $19,007 compared to $19,702 for the year ended December 31,2009 a decrease of $695 primarily due to
closing of one of the interest bearing accounts.
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2010, we had total current assets of $3.5 million and current labilities of $1.1 million resulting in a working capital surplus of $2.4 million. At
December 31, 2009, we had total current assets of $3.7 million and current liabilities of $1.1 million, resulting in a working capital surplus of $2.6 million.

Management believes that the Company’s current level of working capital combined with funds that it expects to generate in its operations during the next twelve
months and available from its $500,000 revolving line of credit facility will be sufficient to sustain the business through at least December 31, 2011. While the
Company has taken certain measures to conserve its liquidity as it continues the effort to pursue its business initiatives, there can be no assurance that the Company
will be successful in its efforts to expand its operations or that the expansion of its operations will improve its operating resutts. The Company also cannot provide
any assurance that the current economic and budget crisis faced by federal, state and local governments, will not have a material adverse effect on the business that
could require it to raise additional capital or take other measures to sustain operations in the event that outside sources of capital are not available. Although the
Company has no specific indication that its business will be further affected by the current economic downturn or at a level beyond management’s ability to manage
this risk, this matter is an uncertainty that is under continuous review by management and could also effect the availability of external funding if needed. If the
Company encounters unforeseen circumstances it may need to curtail certain of its operations. Although management believes the Company has access to capital
resources, it has not secured any commitments for new financing at this time, other than the revolving line of credit with a bank reported in this Annual Report, nor
can it provide any assurance that new capital will be available to it on acceptable terms, if at all.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company is not party to any off-balance sheet transactions as defined in Item 303 of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Regulation S-K.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Brekford Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Brekford Corp. (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the two year period ended December 31, 2010. The Company’s
management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Brekford Corp. as
of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two year period ended December 31,
2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Stegman & Company
Stegman & Company

Baltimore, Maryland
February 22,2011




BREKFORD CORP.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2010 2009

223,926
21,140,461 . 662,904
2,287,105

» 1 re; 20,000,000°shares authorized: nondissusdand Gut ng
Common stock par value $0. 0001 per share 150,000,000 shares authorized; 40,580,513 issued
December 31, 2010 and 39,705,513

shares issued outstandmg as f December 31,

1.9,853,05
(7,593 633)
%:2.263/485 2

$ 4550590 $ 4122788

Total'llablhtles and \sAtockhvelders equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BREKFORD CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,
2010 2009

et Sales’
”Co‘st of sales

" Diluted

39,921,046 55,013,628

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BREKFORD CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Additional
Common Stock Treasury Stock Paid-In Accumulated
Par Value Shares Par Value __ Capital Deficit

BALAI December 31,2009
Shares issued (Common stock issued in
connecti% Wi

Restricted shares issues to e“n;i)\lo'yee'
Neti : i
BALANCE — December 31, 2010

500,000

‘ e - A
'$ 40,580,513 § 4,059 — — § 9853059 § (7,593,633) $ 2263485

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BREKFORD CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
2010 2009

Cash ﬂows from operating activities:

justments to reconcile net mcome to net cash prov1ded by operating :
eprécia atio

o

(0160857
1,750,362

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

18




BREKFORD CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010 and 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES
Description of the Business

Brekford Corp. (“Brekford” or the “Company™) is a homeland security technology service provider of fully integrated vehicle upfitting and installation services,
rugged computer and video technology and automated traffic safety solutions geared towards mission critical operations. For more than a decade we have provided
services to branches of the U.S. military, various federal entities and numerous security and public safety agencies throughout the United States. We provide these
agencies with an end-to-end suite of rugged mobile communications, information technology, vehicle upfitting services, and automated traffic photo enforcement
solutions that are designed to streamline procurement processes and offer maximum functionality to their day to day operations.

Brekford is a one-stop shop for vehicle upfitting, cutting edge technology and installation services. We provide ruggedized mobile computers and video systems,
bumper-to-bumper vehicle modification products and services for homeland security, law enforcement, fire and emergency vehicles. The Brekford 360 Degree
approach provides our customers with a one-stop upfitting, cutting edge technology and installation service. The 360 Degree approach is the only stop our
customers need to make to purchase law enforcement vehicles (GM, Ford, Dodge), have them upfitted with lights, sirens, radio communication and rugged IT
technology and then have them "ready to roll”. The Company also provides a 360 Degree approach to automatic traffic enforcement from hardware, equipment,
installation and including the back office operations for processing, collection and disbursement of fines due to violations. Automatic traffic safety enforcement
covers speed and red light violations. Qur 360 Degree engineered bumper-to-bumper vehicle solution, our commitment to top quality fast reliable service, along with
our streamlined purchasing process is why we believe Brekford is the best all-around rugged mobile communications, information technology, vehicle upfitting
services, and automated traffic safety solutions provider.

Principles of Consolidation
The financial statements of Brekford include accounts of the Company and its various business units. For the year ended December 31, 2009 the consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Pelican Mobile Computers. During the year ended December 31, 2010

Pelican Mobile Computers was merged into Brekford Corp.

Use of Estimates

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash accounts with major financial institutions, Cash deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to
$250,000 at each institution. From time to time deposits may vary.
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Accounts Receivable and Unbilled Receivables

Accounts receivable and unbilled receivables are carried at estimated net realizable value. The Company has a policy of reserving for uncollectable accounts based
on its best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in its existing accounts receivable. The Company calculates the allowance based on a specific analysis of
past due balances. Past due status is based on how recently payments have been received by customers. Actual collection experience has not differed significantly
from the Company’s estimates, due primarily to credit and collections practices and the financial strength of its customers.

Inventory

Inventory principally consists of hardware and third-party packaged software that is modified to conform to customer specifications and held temporarily until the
completion of a contract. These amounts are stated at lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation of furniture, vehicles, computer equipment and software and phone equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives (two to ten years), and leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives or the lease term (which is three to five years).

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when all four basic criteria are met (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery or installation has been completed,
(iii) the customer accepts and verifies receipt, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured. The Company considers delivery to its customers to have occurred at the
time in which products are delivered and/or installation work is completed and the customer acknowledges its acceptance of the work. For automatic traffic
enforcement revenue, the Company recognizes the revenue on the date that the Company determines a valid violation occurs.

The Company provides its customers with a warranty against defects in the installation of its vehicle upfitting solutions for one year from the date of
installation. Warranty claims were insignificant for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. The Companty also performs warranty repair services on behalf of
the manufacturers of the equipment it sells. The Company does not currently offer separately priced extended warranty and product maintenance contracts, nor does
the Company reduce its prices in anticipation of selling extended warranties offered by the manufacturers of the equipment it sells. Revenues from warranty services
were insignificant during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Shipping and Handling Costs

All amounts billed to customers related to shipping and handling are included in products revenues and all costs of shipping and handling are included in cost of
sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The Company incurred shipping and handling costs of $38,519 and $51,304 for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. These expenses are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statements

of operations. Advertising expense amounted to $12,615 and $24,515 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock incentive plans by measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based awards on estimated fair values, net
of estimated and actual forfeitures, on a straight line basis over the period during which the employee is required to provide services in exchange for the award.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method to account for income taxes. Income tax expense includes income taxes currently payable and deferred taxes arising from
temporary differences between financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred income taxes are measured using the enacted tax rates and
laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the
amount expected to be realized. Income tax expense, if any, consists of the taxes payable for the current period. Valuation allowances are established when the
realization of deferred tax assets are not considered more likely than not.

In the ordinary course of business there is inherent uncertainty in quantifying income tax positions. The Company assesses income tax positions and records tax
benefits for all years subject to examination based upon management’s evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the reporting dates. For
those tax positions where it is more-likely-than-not that a tax benefit will be sustained, the Company records largest amount of tax benefit with greater than 50%
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. For those income tax positions where it
is not more-likely-than-not that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit is recognized in the financial statements. When applicable, associated interest and
penalties are recognized as a component of income tax expense. Accrued interest and penalties are included within the related tax asset or liability on the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share are computed by adjusting the denominator of the basic earnings per share computation for the effect of
potential dilutive common shares outstanding during the period.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet for cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate their fair values
based on the short-term maturity of these instruments. The carrying amount of the Company’s note obligations approximate fair value, as the terms of these notes are
consistent with terms available in the market for instruments with similar risk.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-13, Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (“ASU 2009-13"), which applies to all deliverables in contractual
arrangements in which a vendor will perform multiple revenue-generating activities. In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-17, Revenue Recognition—Milestone
Method (“ASU 2010-17), which defines a milestone and determines when it may be appropriate to apply the milestone method of revenue recognition for research or
development transactions. These pronouncements are codified in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and will be effective for our fiscal year that begins January 1,
2011. These pronouncements may be applied prospectively or retrospectively, and early adoption is permitted. We are evaluating the impact that adoption of ASU
2009-13 and ASU 2010-17 may have on our consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,
2010 2009
466420 5 A%

Leasehold impfoyements
C :

(361224)

) (239,543)
1,011,950: :

32,832

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $121,681 and $98,322, respectively. Cameras include $
280,000 worth of equipment that are idle or have not been deployed as of December 31,2010.

NOTE 3 - LINE OF CREDIT AND LETTER OF CREDIT

On November 4, 2010, the Company entered into a $500,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank. Under this agreement the Company may repay principal
amounts and re-borrow them during the term of the agreement. Interest is payable at the rate of the BBA LIBOR Daily Floating rate plus 4%.The line of credit is
collateralized by all assets of the Company and is personally guaranteed by the two principal officers of the Company. The line of credit agreement expires in April
2011.

NOTE 4 - NOTES PAYABLE ~ STOCKHOLDERS

The Company financed the repurchase of shares of Common Stock and warrants from the proceeds of convertible promissory notes issued on November 9, 2009 by
the Company in favor of a lender group including two directors of the Company, Messrs. C.B. Brechin and Scott Rutherford and a former director, Mr. Bruce
Robinson, in the respective principal amounts of $250,000, $250,000 and $200,000 (each, a “Promissory Note, and together, the “Promissory Notes™). Each Promissory
Note bears 12% interest per annum and at the time of execution was to be convertible into shares of Common Stock, at the option of each holder, at an original
conversion price of $.07 per share. At the time of the execution of the Promissory Notes, the Company agreed to pay the unpaid principal balance of the Promissory
Notes and all accrued and unpaid interest on the date that was the earlier of (i) two (2) years from the issue date of the notes, or (ii) ten (10) business days from the
date of closing by the Company of any equity financing generating gross proceeds in the aggregate amount of not less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000).

On April 1, 2010, the Company and each member of the lender group executed a respective First Amendment to the Unsecured Promissory Note amending the terms
of the Promissory Notes. Each Promissory Note was amended as described below to:

e Revise the conversion price in the provision that allows the holder of the respective Promissory Note to elect to convert any outstanding and unpaid
principal portion of the Promissory Note, and any accrued and unpaid interest into shares of the Common Stock at a price of fourteen cents ($0.14) per share
of Common Stock, and

® Amend the maturity date provided the Company agrees to pay the unpaid principal balance of the respective Promissory Note and all accrued and unpaid

interest on the date that is the earlier of (i) four (4) years from the issue date of the note or (ii) ten (10) business days from the date of closing by the Company
of any equity financing generating gross proceeds in the aggregate amount of not less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000).
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NOTE 5- LEASES
Capital Leases

The Company financed certain equipment and vehicles under separate non-cancelable equipment loan and security agreements. The agreements mature in July 2012,
June 2013, October 2013 and January 2015. The agreements require various monthly payments and are secured by the assets under lease. As of December 31, 2010
and 2009, capital lease assets of $380,879 and $56,572, respectively, net of accumulated amortization of $25,693 and $16,390, respectively are included in property and
equipment on the consolidated balance sheets.

Future minimum lease payments under these lease agreements at December 31 , 2010 are as follows:

Operating Leases
The Company rents office space under separate non-cancelable operating leases expiring in March 2011, June 2013 and January 2015..

Future minimum lease payments under these lease agreements, exclusive of the Company’s share of operating costs at December 31,2010 are as follows:

1128
940,062

In addition, the lessor provided the Company with a $221,400 leasehold improvement incentive that was recorded as a component of property and equipment and is
included in deferred rent and is being amortized over the lease term. The lease agreement provides for the Company to reimburse the lessor for the cost of the
Improvements on a pro rata basis over the term of the lease in the event of the Company's default on or termination of the lease agreement prior to the expiration of
term of the lease in 2015.

The Company records rent expense over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis, less amounts received under sub-lease arrangements. Rent expense amounted
t0 $209,249 and $184,286 for the years ended December 31,2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company leased approximately 2,500 square feet of office space from Peppermill Properties, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company (“Peppermill”). Peppermill
is owned and managed by Chandra (C.B.) Brechin and Scott Rutherford, both officers, directors and principal stockholders of the Company. On June 1, 2010, the
Company entered into a 3-year lease with Peppermill. For the year ended December 31, 2010, lease payments amounted to $17,850.

Beginning in November 2008, the Company entered into a sub-lease arrangement with certain former employees of the Company, expiring March 2011. The sub-lease

arrangement requires various monthly payments ranging from $3,091 to $3,353, and is recorded in rent expense, net of sub-lease expense.

23




NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Issuance of Shares of Common Stock to Former Employees

On April 6, 2010, the Board authorized the issuance of 375,000 shares of restricted Common Stock to three former employees or 125,000 shares each, in settlement of
their claims for shares forfeited due to termination of employment.

Brekford International Corp. v. Woot, Inc.

On or about January 16, 2009, the Company filed suit against Woot, Inc., a Texas corporation (“Woot™) in the United States District Court of the Southern District of
Florida, Miami Division, Case No. 09-20143-Civ-Seitz/O’Sullivan. The complaint alleged that on or about July 29, 2008, the Company agreed to purchase from Woot,
and Woot agreed to sell to the Company, ten thousand (10,000) Lexmark printers and digital camera bundles (the “Goods”) for the purchase price of $370,000 (the
“Contract Price”). The Company paid Woot the Contract Price and instructed Woot to ship the Goods to a third party. The complaint further alleges Woot breached
the contract by failing to deliver the Goods to the third party as directed. The Company demanded Woot return the full Contract Price to the Company, but Woot has
failed and refused to do so. As a result of Woot’s alleged breaches, the Company sought damages in the amount of $320,000, plus pre-judgment interest and costs.
On March 9, 2009, Woot filed a motion to dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction and an alternative motion to transfer venue. On April 14, 2009, an order was entered
granting the defendant’s request for a change of venue and transferring the case to the United States District Court of the Eastern District of Texas. On May 5, 2009,
Woot filed an answer denying liability to the Company, and on May 11, 2009, Woot filed third party complaints against the parties Chiragnee, Inc. and Zenith
Distributors, Inc. On January 21, 2010, the Company entered into a compromise settlement agreement and mutual release whereby the Company agreed to accept
$245,000 in full settlement of its claims. The final payment of $50,000 was received on September 10,2010.
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NOTE 7 - NET INCOME PER SHARE

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed by adjusting the denominator of the basic income per share computation for the effect of all
dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period.

Year ended December 31,
2010 2009

Numerator:
Netincome:< bagic:- 4
Convertible debt interest

Néfincome : diluted :

1

ighted avere;ge‘s‘har

 warrants and debt conversion rights excluded from

NOTE 8 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Securities Purchase Agreement and Warrants

On October 1, 2009, three directors of the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement on behalf of the Company, to repurchase 18,910,000 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock, and cancel 10,000,000 Common Stock purchase warrants exercisable at $.39 per share. The aggregate purchase price for the securities was
$700,000. The effectiveness of the stock purchase agreement was required to be approved by the courts. The court approval was received on November 4, 2009;
consequently, the repurchased shares of Common Stock and Warrants have been returned to the Company’s treasury and cancelled. The stock purchase agreement
was financed by three notes payable to stockholders, see Note 4.

NOTE 9 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has issued restricted stock, warrants and granted non-qualified stock options to certain employees and non-employees at the discretion of the board
of directors. On April 25, 2008, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). All stock options granted to employees prior to the
approval of the Plan have exercise prices that are less than or equal to the fair value of the underlying stock at the date of grant and have terms of ten years. The
vesting period of all options granted to date is two years and is dependent upon continued employment with the Company. To date, there have been no stock option
grants under the Plan. The Company reserves Common Stock for future issuance for restricted stock awards, stock options, and warrants.
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Stock Options

There was no share-based compensation expense during the years ended December 31, 2010 or 2009 related to stock options. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
there were no outstanding stock options.

Restricted Stock Grants

On November 26, 2010, the Company granted an aggregate of 500,000 shares of restricted stock to one of its key executives in consideration of services rendered.
The fair value of the shares amounted to $45,000, or $0.09 per share based upon the closing price of shares of the Company’s Common Stock on November 26,
2010. These shares were fully vested on the date of the grant. The Company recorded $45,000 in share-based compensation expense during 2010, related to restricted
stock grants. The Company has no other outstanding restricted stock grants at December 31, 2010 or 2009

Common Stock Purchase Warrants

For the year ended December 31, 2010, there was no share-based compensation income for common stock purchase warrants. As of December 31, 2010, there are no
unvested common stock purchase warrants. The Company did not capitalize the cost associated with share-based compensation.

A summary of warrant activity is as follows:

Weighted
Shares Weighted Average
Underlying Average Weighted Fair Remaining

Warrants Exercise P

16,595000. $°

Val

4,595,000 §

2008 Stock Incentive Plan

On February 19, 2008, the Board of Directors authorized the adoption of the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan™), subsequently approved by the
stockholders on April 25, 2008, which is designed to provide an additional incentive to executives, employees, directors and key consultants, aligning the long term
interests of participants in the Incentive Plan with those of the Company and the Company’s stockholders. The Incentive Plan provides that up to 8 million shares of
the Company’s Common Stock may be issued under the Plan. A total of 500,000 restricted shares of Common Stock were issued to an employee for the year ended
December 31, 2010 in recognition of services to the Company under the Incentive Plan. There are 7,480,000 shares available for future issuances under this Plan.
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2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On February 19, 2008, the board of directors authorized the adoption of the 2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”), subsequently approved by the
stockholders on April 25, 2008, which is designed to encourage and enable eligible employees to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company’s Common Stock. The
Purchase Plan provides that up to 2 million shares of the Company’s Common Stock may be issued under the Plan. No shares have been issued under the Plan.

NOTE 10 - MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND VENDORS
Major Customers

During the year ended December 31, 2010, there were two customers each of which had total sales greater than 10% of total net sales. Accounts receivable due from
three customers amounted to 22.7% , 18.4 % and 18.0% respectively, of total accounts receivable at December 31, 2010. During the year ended December 31, 2010,
sales to government and commercial customers represented 94.2% and 5.8% of net sales for the year, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, sales to one customer which is an agency of a municipal government represented 13% of net sales and 49% of total
accounts receivable at December 31, 2009. Accounts receivable due from one other customer amounted to 17% of total accounts receivable at December 31,
2009. During the year ended December 31,2009, sales to government and commercial customers represented 86% and 14% of net sales for the year, respectively.

Major Vendors

The Company purchased substantially all laptop computers that it resold during the periods presented from a single distributor. Revenues from laptop computers,
which amounted to $6,973,323 and $9,444,914, comprised approximately 60% and 65% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

While the Company believes that alternative sources of these products are available, it has yet to identify sources other than these two vendors that have the ability

to deliver these products to the Company within the time frames and specifications that it currently demands. The loss of either of these vendors could result in a
temporary disruption of the Company’s operations.
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NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES

As of December 31, 2010, the Company has approximately $2.6 million of federal and state net operating loss carry forwards available to offset future taxable income, if
any, through 2030. These net operating losses begin to expire in 2026. If, however, there is an ownership change in the Company, Section 382 of the Internal Revenue
Code may restrict the Company’s ability to utilize these loss carryforwards to a percentage of the market value of the Company at the time of the ownership change.
Therefore, these operating loss carryforwards could become limited in future years if ownership changes were to occur as defined in the Internal Revenue Code and
similar state income tax provisions. The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. Federal Jurisdictions. The Company is no longer subject to U.S. Federal Income
tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2007.

The Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows for each of the periods presented:

December 31,
2010 2009

898,000
. (898:000);
$ —

The Company’s recorded income tax, net of the change in the valuation allowarnce for each of the periods presented, is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2010 2009

(563,000)
480,000

The tax provision for 2009 was due to the alternative minimum tax liability at the federal level and unusable net operating loss carryforwards at the state level.
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Management has evaluated the recoverability of the deferred income tax assets and the level of the valuation allowance required with respect to such deferred income
tax assets. After considering all available facts, the Company fully reserved for its deferred tax assets because it is more likely than not that their benefit will not be
realized in future periods. The Company will continue to evaluate its deferred tax assets to determine whether any changes in circumstances could affect the
realization of their future benefit. If it is determined in future periods that portions of the Company’s deferred income tax assets satisfies the realization standard, the
valuation allowance will be reduced accordingly.

A reconciliation of the expected Federal statutory rate of 34% to the Company’s actual rate as reported for each of the periods presented is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, management carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). In designing and evaluating its disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognized that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are met. Additionally, in designing disclosure controls and procedures,
management was necessarily required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possibie disclosure controls and procedures. The design of
any disclosure controls and procedures also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any
design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Based upon that evaluation, management concluded that these disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered in this report.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting for the Company. In order to evaluate
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, management has conducted an assessment,
including testing using criteria described in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COS0O”). Because of the inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Based on its assessment, management has concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2010.

(¢) Changes in Internal Controls

During the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2010, there has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materiaily affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On November 4, 2010 (the “Effective Date”), the Company entered into a revolving line of credit agreement with Bank of America, N.A. (the “Bank”) whereby the
Bank has provided a line of credit commitment in the amount of $500,000 to the Company. The line of credit, which is available between the Effective Date and April
29,2011, bears interest at a rate per year equal to the BBA LIBOR daily floating rate plus 4%. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the funds borrowed under the
line of credit are permitted to be used only for short term working capital. In connection with the line of credit, the Company also entered into a security agreement
with the Bank on the Effective Date, assigning and granting to the Bank a security interest in all assets of the Company securing the indebtedness of the Company to
the Bank. The indebtedness under the line of credit agreement is personally guaranteed by the Company’s chief executive officer, C.B. Brechin and president, Scott
Rutherford.

On February 10, 2011, the Company’s vice president of finance, Tin Khin, provided written notice to the Company that he is retiring from the Company effective
February 18, 2011.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to certain information from the Proxy Statement of the Company to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission in connection with the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”) not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Annual Report.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to certain information from the Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required in Item 5 of Part II of this Annual Report under the heading “Equity Compensation Plan Information™ is incorporated by reference. All other
information required by this item is incorporated by reference to certain information from the Proxy Statement of the Company to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later
than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not
later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of the report.

(1)  Financial Statements Incorporated by reference from the financial statements and accompanying notes to financial statements set forth in Item 8 of this
Annual Report.

Schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are not applicable or are not required or the information required to be set forth therein is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

Exhibit Description
Number

uly 6 2007 and mcorporated in by reference) . .
22 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between the Company and 1ts wholly owned sub51d1ary, Pellcan Mobile Computers, Inc., date
ibit to the C filed ber 2, 2! i i £

315 Cemﬁcate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of American Financial Ho!dmgs Inc as filed with the State of Delaware on January 6,
2006 (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6, 2007 and
mcorporated herein by reference)

'd on-Marchi-i5; 20 10 and'i mcorpo :




32 Bylaws of Brekford Corp. (prev10usly fi led as an exhibit to the Company s Reg1strat|on Statement on Form 10 SB (SEC File No. 000- 52?19) filed on

July 6, 2007 and 1ncorporated herein by reference)
Stoc : nt | between B

2007 1D ' ' ‘
42 Warrant to Purchase Brekford International Corp. Common Stock in favor of Paul Harary and Paris McKenzie TBE (Warrant Ho]der) dated
January 31 2007 (prevmusly filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6,

719) filed on July 6; 2007 and incor
I Corp. Common Stock by and

I .
signatory thereto (prevrously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) ﬁled on July 6,

46 Form of Warrant issued to Sierra Equity Group, Ltd. Inc. w1th respect to the Company’s March 2007 pr1vate oﬁ"ermg closed March 30, 2007 and its :
assrgns (prev1ously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6, 2007 and
d hy b

Sierra Equity Group,
an exhibit to.the Com

4.10 Form of Warrant lssued to Birch Systems, LLC pursuant to the General Release and Settlement Agreement between the Company and Blrch
Systems, LLC (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 23, 2009 and incorporated herein by

reference)

102 Contract by and between Pellcan Mobile Computers Inc. and the State of Maryland dated July 15,2001 (previously filed as an exhibit to the
Company’s Regrsh'anon Statement on Form 10- SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6, 2007 and incorporated herem by reference)

-CO1p:
eglstratlon Statem i1 _Q-,S_B _(SE_C File No. 000-52719) filed-o y:6:2007 and mcorporated herein by reference)
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o and incorporated herein by reference)
10.5 Sublease Agreement by and between Brekford International Corp. and TSO Armor and Training, Inc. dated December 8 2008 (previously filed as an

s

exhibit to the Company

s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 23, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference)
kh ]

the Company’s Quarterly Repoit ( un Form 10-Qfi f ied on May 6; 2010 and incorporated herein by refe
n Peppermill, Properties, LLC and Brekford Corp., dated June 1, 2010 (previously filed as an exhib
Q filed on August 4, 2010 and incorpor: i
0 NEC a1 ember 4 2010 by and between Brekiord : B

311 Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rulcs 13a-14(a) and 15d- 14(a) as
adopted pursuant t Section 302 of the Sarb Act of 2002 +

+ Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Brekford International Corp.

Date: February 22, 2011 By: /s/ C.B. BRECHIN
Chandra (C.B.) Brechin
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer ,Treasurer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and

/s/ C.B. BRECHIN Director February 22, 2011
Chandra (C.B.) Brechin

/s/ SCOTT RUTHERFORD President and Director February 22, 2011
Scott Rutherford

/s/ DOUGLAS DELEAVER Director February 22, 2011
Douglas DeLeaver

/s/ JESSIE LEE, JR. Director February 22,2011

Jessie Lee, Jr.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description
Number

) 4 on:E )

312 Cert1f cate of Correct10n of Certificate of Incorporation of California Cyber De51gn, Inc. as filed wrth the State of Delaware on July 17
1998 (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6, 2007 and
incorporated herem by reference)

ﬁled Awithi the State of Dela

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate Irlcorpereflon . rrxlerly known bas California Cyber Design, Inc.) as
filed with the State of Delaware on January 6, 2006 (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File
d mcorporated herein by reference)

1D! el |
First Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatron of Brekford Intemat1onal Corp. as filed with the State of Delaware on January 4,
2006 (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6, 2007 and
inco! orategw herein by reference)

316

: ,reference)

Bylaws of Brekford Corp. (prev1ously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Regrstratlon Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000- 52?19) ﬁled on
__July6, 2007 and 1ncorporated herem by reference)

0- SB {SEC File No 00: 52719) fi led .
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42 Warrant to Purchase Brekford International Corp. Common Stock in favor of Paul Harary and Paris McKenzie TBE (Warrant Holder) dated

January 31, 2007 (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6,
2007 and incorporated herein b referggge) ——— )

Form ofSu CI ement & /
tatement on Form e 1 Ce) i
Form of Warrant to Purchase Brekford Inte p. ord International Corp. and the Unit purchasers

signatory thereto (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6
2007 an i

d incorporat b ce)
. reference -

Form of Waﬁant issued to Sierra Equity Group, Ltd. Inc. with réspect to the Company’s March 2007 private ffering closed arél;\,.’»O, and its

assigns (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6, 2007 and
incorporated herein by reference)

>

ember. 18, ,
-52719) filed'on 07

q'lj' fied (O'p oﬂXg ement to Purchase Shares of Common Stock of Bre]d‘(;;'d International Cdrp. (previously filed as an exhibit to the

Reg n C File No. 000-52719) filed on July 6, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference)
- / . ously fileg 18 the’

ed to ﬁircﬁ%yé ems, LLC pursuei?nt to the Génera\iwﬁele;s'g and Settlement Agreement between the Company and Birch
Systems, LLC (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 23,2009 and incorporated herein by

onJuls6,2007 and incorpo
15,2001 (previously filed

led on July 6, 2007 and in i
43 o

State of Maryland dated July
0.000-52719) fi

B Conipany’s Registration S (SEC File No 000:52719) filed on Jily'6,2007and ncorpotated herein by referenc .
10.4 Letter from Panasonic Personal Computer Company confirming Pelican Mobile Computers, Inc. as the only Maryland based Company authorized to
sell the fully ruggedized line of Panasonic Notebooks to Maryland State and Local government agencies dated February 8, 2006 (previously filed as

an exhibit to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form 10-SB (SEC File No. 000-52719) filed on September 21, 2007
and incorporated herein by reference)
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D¢ erence) . .4
ock Purchase greement effective November 4, 2 09, by and between the receiver of stockholder LengI Marketing, Inc and certain directors of
Brekford International Corp., on behalf of the Company (previously filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

10, 2009 (\i\\mc rporated herein by reference)
y Note

el ovem 2009:and inc:
Form of First Amendment to Unsecured Promissory Note, dated Apnl 30, 2010 between the Company and each member of the Company’s lender
group (previously f led as an exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 6,2010 and(mcorporated herein by reference)

Certification of F Principal Executive Officer and Prlncipal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectlon 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 +

+ Filed herewith.
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L2 ] Fhuanciat ink o, AS tivancds] and okher imfaematiar hat has been or wall b supplied to T Dank %
sylficierily compicia togive the Bank accurate kmowledge of the Blerrowesr's (and any suaranior’s) financial condibon,
anetidivg @l matenad confingent iabitties  Sines the date of the most recont fimamcial siatament provided fa the Benk,
mmmmmmmmmmmwsmm{m ar olhenwisa), opatabions, proporhes of
amsmﬁmsmmzorm y guarentor). B tho Borrowar le comprisod of tha trustens of a4t tha feregoing
repreapntabons ghall Sieo periain 16 tha trostoe(R) of By it

63 luwwnlls. There s nolawsid, tax clsim or ofher deput ding ox thrasiensd agawmst the B b, of
vt ki enipriatr fil Borrower's financial consitton ar akdity to repay b Joan, sxcepl as hawe boan: dclosad i eniting to
the Bank.

68 Otheer Obilgations, The Borromest 1 nod i defnm on sey ebigaton for barowed Monsy, SNy PUIGHEse: maNey
W&wmm lease, commirent, contracl, mebumant oroblgation, excapt 8s have been: dsuiozed in

7  Vax Mathiis. Tha Somower has no knowledge of any pending assessments o adiusbments of s imcome e foe
any yesr and ol Eaxes due tave beon paid, excepl se ave been dadosed in wertng 1o tha Benk,

68  NoEventof Default. Thersn no ovant which i, o with sobice o lepag of tme or both would ba, o default nder
thes Agreament,

B9  Collsteral Adoodaters) negonedin iy Agreemeol is wned iy tha grantor of The: seciuty mierasl free of any tiip
efects oF soy hens or nferesis of olbers, exeapt Huose wiveh have heen spproved by tha Bank i wriing

A ANTS

“Thee BosTewes agrens, 36 long @3 credi is awiilable under (s Agreernam and il 16 Bienk 15 repan 1n il

T4 Uso of Prosends, To usethe procesus of the Creos only for shoe biam worang sapital

72  Financls information, Topovde the fofowng Bnancial snfonmaton and ststaments i form and epitent
Beceptabio to the Bank, sad such eddtons! mewrmmwmaanx Irum Eima o tms, The Bank reserves
Wvammmamwm. i FaGN e Boirower 1 dalver fi il miater s ko ther

Tt imiiuently than olherwise prowided below, and to use such addiibw adormatem and st i
any applicable nancal coverants inthis Agraement.

) Within $20 days of Bormrower's fucal year end:

) The ammes Kmancst siatements of Borwer cartified and gaiad by an suthonzed finanowl officer Thase
finaricial statenveits must bo rowewed by & Cedified Public Astountant seceptable ba e Bank,

(1} A dataisd aging s 05 Bievtwors msciviablos by meace o8 summary seng by sceount deblor
{in) Debi Bchedute for the Borrower

{v) A properly completed porsonel finsncrl stajement of Scolt D Rutherford and Chands B. Breghevon
e Bank’s forms weth 2l questons Tully enswered and ol schsdules compiated)in tha endiey, nchadmg
ol roquessiind moornelexponss IMHMMELDN. COMINGEN Kabibes discloaurs, providsd ihad, §tha paity
3 nany

; ¥ : SLpporting schedules,
JMHWWWMM Hank's Daansis) stabenant form is prowsdad b eu of wslhyg Such Forin.

v} Copies of the Tedeval ncoma i retum of Scolt B Rutierdord and Ch B. Breciun, 4 doed by
ths Bank, copion of any exlantons of the filing dais
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T3 Oihor Dubls. Noi to have oulsbising 66 incis sy direel o7 contingant iabatuos of Isese obiigatens (other than
Hhasn ke the Bank), or become fatile for the kabines of cibem, wilicod the Bank's witlan consent  Thes does not pohi:

(8} Acqumng goods, supphes, o merchandiae on: aomal Iede.cradit,
by mmmmmmmwmmmmmmhmmmmmwmmmwmumm
fex  IFbw Bomewss ke anabersk person, sdobonst dabls of fhe Borrepwer 35 an andavicdual o7 CORSURTES PAEDOSEs.

74 Utherllers. Not fo craats, ansurin, of sRow Aity Sbciiy ISFE8E oF o {eluding fudicet Hsns) on gropenty the
Bomowsn now o likt Gwis, Sxsepl.

13} Utens and secury mbbrests i faver of the Bank,

1) Lsens fiof fmces nol yaidos

e} Liens cutstanding on e dats of this Agroament disefossd m vbag o the Bank.
¥8  Wslntenmnce of Anssis,

1)  Noliosel, mesgn , leass, ensler of stherwise dupese-of any part of the Bomrower's busmess of the Bortowar's
aunets exsaplin the erdnery course of ths Bormowors business

b} Nottosell, aszign, mb.mmmwmn@pmdmmfwhmmfawmmmmmw into
By egroemenila do 3o

e} Notio entermlo any sate and leassback ag f ng sy of e fixed dasets,

9} Temaminand proserve altnghls, privieges, and fancheses the Bomowsr: now has

L] Tomke Yy ¥EDAIG; TeNEwWalS; OF captacaniEnts 16 ke the Bomteret’s prupasiies W GOD WOk Condaian:
78  Loans. Notlomsks anyfoans, dvanoss or olhor extsnamins o cedit 1o soy sxshidust o ety exeapt for

exiarain of sredit m e nEbune of BeEsEnls FEssvale G aoles revoivaiile rising fomy the satd or lase of gieds o
sarwoen in the ordinary course of business io nosailisied entiles

77 Changeof Management. Not ko rake any substartisl charga o Ghe poezer| SXBCUtNG OF management
porsanre] of the Bomower

T8 Ghamgeof Ownership, if the Berower s anything olher han o mglurel paraon; not 10 cause, pam, or suffer
anyehango in-eapitol evwnarsivp such thel ore 19 5 metons) ehangs, o9 deformaned by the Bank m fts solr-diseration, @
he dvect or indliner capiak owmaship of ha Bomower

79 Addiionst Negative Covenante. Notto, it the Bank's written consent,

{8 mmwmpm}mm,ammammbmmammpmapmms@up,amambguia
jeank veinture, of 3 Enember of a hrnisd Nabity company:

(b}  Aeouire of purchose o buthess of 1 nets,
-] Efieates 14 Sy bukinass setiliss substantally diferasl Fom 1o Boncwars prasenl businasse,
{dy Lapanipie or dissoive the Borrow £

710 Nellcosto Bank To prompiy notly the Bankn vniling of

L6} Asty evainl of default unier ttus Agresmient,. o any tvent which, milinotee o lapas of tme or Both, weuld
cotsiiite 90 Bvenkof defaiuit

Reflf 10003057 < Beckfad Corp
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{)  Anychange i o Borrower's noma, iogd struckere, } pegi: {tor on indhwtuall), shatis oF regaalon. {for

A rigstired enfity), place of busmess, or chisf socutive oifica: i ihe Borrowar has more than ona placs of
Buiginess

™
(=)
i)

8 To mamasin INSAFAnes 35 18 uSud) 157 I BusebEs Ak A,

’ olaigrsl Tomalnizin sl visk proparty detmsge msurante pahcies inclucing without
linstatinn wendstorm g, - B ecoversne ea epplicable) epvenng the tongbie propedly compnsing
he caliateral Esch nsurance policy mysi be for the il replicement cost of e collateral and aiivide @
feplcement cost endwsenent. The Estranoe must e issued by 2n nsurante company accepialia o the Bank
and must ssuds a lanter's 10ss payabie endorsemenl in Favor of the Bank m 3 form acospishia to the Bank

Cyidenns of insmaes Uipon tha regaaslof the Bask, todelves 1o e Bark & eopy of each innasncs polioy, o,
Hparmuthed by s Bark, 3 carificala o imturance lisiing ol insvrancs I force

P42 Compliance with Laws, To-comphy with tha lows {nchuling any fictifous or irade name stshted, ragutations, aid
onders of any govermment body wash @henty over the r's buaimags. The Bank shell have no chligaton t muke
any advnce 1o i Borower excest msompiance wih:i apsicable Iaws s reguiatong and the Bontwer shell fuly
Gooparste wih the Bank incomphyng wih all such 2pplicabla Bws and reguiatons.

T.13  Eooks and Records. To mamniain adsgiisty bovks oid incards

P44 Aids. To llow ihe Bank and 13 sgenis lo mepecttha Boreower's propertas and examene, aud, and make
sapies of books and records at any ressonsbie ime. If 2my of e Bowwer's proparaes, books o7 reperds 2re inthe

possastion of o thind party, the Borrowsr authorizes et third porty to pormi the Bank or ds agenis 1o bave awess W
Wmmmmmtmmmmmmummmmmmm

)

T8 Perfootion of Liens. To help the Bank pedlanland prolect s sacisiy wrievasls: and tons, and reimburae i for
related cosly I v 10 FOlECt B Josidrty intarecin and hong,

T.i6  Cooporation, To tehs any acton rnasonably raquastac iy Lhs Bank G cany cul tha et of s Agreomant

147 Bankas Prineipal Depositosy: To matain ithe Bank cr one of fis alfislss 35 #s. mnspal dopository bask,
nchuding for tha miinkansnce of busingss, cash wmana gament, apersiing and atmirishsive depos aecooumts

[ GErAIILT AND RENEDES

¥ sy of the following events of default necurs, e Benk misy do ane or mone &f tha fofiowng willvoist 2y notos decdare
¥ Barowar in Setaalt, stop mading eny sdoitird eiedd siabin to the Bamewer, end requye the Boimowsr 1o repay s
entie dabt immedsately if an svert which, with notcer or he passege of Bme, will constdula an ovenl-of dafauh has
oeearel and B continuing, the Bark his no obiigation to meke advances or sxtend addionsl Credl undey this
Agreement, Inaddtion, £ any event of dafaull ocours, the Bark shall kave alif sighie, nowers and ramadses swnilatle
uniar BRY RaemEnts and grosmionia redquaosd by or exerided m.eonnschon wih thes Agresmony, w2 walk as 28 nghls.
and ramedies sviisbla atiaw or in squsty I i event of default occurs under the paramreph enfilad *Bankipicy,” below,
vy respsct o {ha Boyzomar, than the salirs el culstanding under this Agreementwil sutomaticely be dus minetnlaly,

31 Follurs to Pay. The Borrower Fis to make 2 payment under this Agresment whea du,

22 GuharBenk Agreomants. Anydobmull ectkits under eny siher agreernent the Sorrower {or any Obdowyhaz wih
$he Bank or any et of tha Sarkc For purposes ol e Agreament, "OBigor” shat riean any gieanioy, shy perty
Pedying collaterst o e Bank, or, f the Bomewer m eompnaad of the trustees of 3 pest, smy instor

83  Cross-dofanit. w“mwmmwwantmwwwwm the Borrower {or any
Mmmggﬁ afyone else or winch ihe Borrowar {orany Chliper or any of the Bamowar's relaled entibes or

Ref® POMSS0237 ~ Drekfond Coss
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84  Faizs information. The Bustower o oy Obhigor b gein the Sank Toige o misteading bormaion o

25 Bankrupdcy, ﬁw%mw.w%.wamwﬂwﬁud%ﬂwwmwdwﬁbﬁwﬂaé
bankruptcy petilan, 5 banknupicy pelilion B fied against oryiof the foregoing pertes, ar the Borrower, any Cbigor, oF any
gemerad sariner of the Bosower of of any OdifIer makes 2 genernl sssignment fof thebansht of craditon,

86 Recsivers. A jootiverorsimiar offickl 13 Eppoiniad for any portvon of tva Bomower's of Obftger'a bushsn,
mmmummm.ummmmgmmammmmwwaMm

BT Revoeatiun or Tesalnation, Ifie Bomower s comprines of (hé- Virten{s) 6f a bubd, B st s revokod or
Difwrwise inmanatid o 38 o 3 subalanha) parted the Bomower's assels are distribuled o oiherwise disposed of,

48  LisnPricrity, The Sank faits i have sn enforpeskinfirst ben (ot for any proe Sens o which tie Bark has
consenied 17 weling) On or sexETy Rieresl m aivy popsiy U assecuny for this Agieement {or any guaraty)

89 lngmeats, Anypogrianis or srbivation swants are anlered againsd Bag Botrower or eny Oblgor

§10  Daath. It the Borrower of sy Obligor s & miskural person, the Bomower or-such Obliger died of boswmeas lanally
incocppetent, f the Berrower or sny OMiger & a busl, & tusior dws or becomes legally Boompelent; § the Bemows: &0 &y
Qiigor i3 2 paringmhin, any yenatad parkor B3 oF Botomes legally axompetont

11 Malerdal Advirse Shangs. A maters advorss: Chsnga DEWS, DF #3 ressonatiy Ukaly i oo, 1 tha Barrawer's
{or any Dbgee's) business conddion ffinanclal or othanviss), epersbons, properties or prospects, of ablity te Fepay the

842  Government Actlon. Aoy government aithonty lkes sclish thal Iba Bank balisins materally advasly alioms
tha Borrewar's. or any Obigor's finantal condiiion of abilly 1o rapay

AN Dafalt oiier Related Documents. Arydafauthocturs undar any gusranty, suburdination soreemest, bacutity
agpeement, deed of tust, morigns, or older document reguired by or delverad M <onneciion with they Agrsesnank o any
such documisntis 1o Eonga ih aftest, o amy QUARARINE DTS Lk Tewoke O Cisavew the guaranty

BA4  Ohver Drenck Undar Agrosaiont. A daiol acours ursdar vy other ar o condition of Dis Agreement not
specdically rafored o in this Arlicde. This inchudiés sy Fafiira 68 Anticipated failure by the Bamower (or any oiher pary
timed i the Covenaints section) to comply with 2ny fivancisl covenants soi Torh n (his Agreemant, whithe? s Iatrs
1# svidenced by Ananciat skatemenis detverediio ths Bank of i otheruise known t the Batrewer of the Bank

{5 TNFORCING 1HIS AGRECHENT; HECELLANEOUS

1 GAAP. Excapl as ctharsse siafed b tis Agreamen, all:inancial Informaton provated bo the Bank and all
frsantizt coverarits wil be made undes gansrally socopbid scoounling prnostes, samistently sppliod 6 ancer bogis
accaplablo 1o the Bank.

32 Govorning Law, Tihva Agretimant 1 poverned by federeal Jow To-the extam that state faw spphes and 12 nol
preempiad by faderal [ow, thondhe taws of the State of Mandand apply Fo the mcent Usat the Bank hs geater mphts or
remadies. under fedaral low, wisthar a3 o sotions] bank or othenwss, bis parzgraph shall il be deamed 1p depma the
Bank of such righis and remedms: as may ba 2vaiabie under federm) law

3.3 Succeszor and Assigns. This Agresment s binding on the: Borowser's 3nd the Benk's successors ang
ansgnoes. The Borrower agress thel i may not assegn IR Agrsemant witout Ko Bank's shor esnsenl

THE BORROWER AVTHORIZES ANY ATTORNEY ADMITTED TO

i RECORD IN.THE UMNFTED STATES-OR ANY CLERK GF ANY LOURT OF
RECORD YO APPEAR ON BEHALF OF THE BORROWER iN ANY EOURT ik ONE OR MORE PROCEEDINGS, OR
BEFORE ANY CLERK THEREOF OR OTHER COURT OFFICIAL, AND 10 CONFESS JUDGMERT ARAINST THE
HORROWER IV FAVOR OF THE HOLDER OF THIB AGREEIMENT IN THE FULL AMOURY DUE UNDER T53%
AGREEMENT (INCLIUDING PRINGIFAL, ACCRUED INTERESY AND ANY AND AlL CHARGES, FEES AND COSTS)

Rely (NOISRT - Brekfiand Oosp
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FLUS ATTORNEYS" FEES ECRFAL TO FIFFEEN PERCENT (15%) OF THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE, PLUS COURT
COSTS, ALL WITHOUT PRIOR HOTICE OR OPPORTUNITY OF T4E BORROWER FOR PRIDR HEARING, THE
BORROWER AGREES AND CONSERTS THAT VENUE AND JURESMCTION SHALL BE PROPER IN THE CIRCUT

UNITED SYATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND. THE RORAOWER WIAVES THE
BENEFIT OF ANY AND EVERY STATUTE, ORDBANGE, OR RULE OF GOURT WHICH AV BF LAWFLLLY
W RIGHT OR PRIVILEGE M, HOMESTEAD

AIVED CONFERRIN : y QF EXEMPTIO
RIGHTS, BTAY OF EXECUTION, mswmu—:mam PROCEEDINGS, OR-QTHER RELIEF FROM THE
ENFORCEMENT OR IMMEDIATE EMENT OF AJUDGMENT OR RELATED PROCEEDINGS CN A
JUDIGMENT. THE AUTHORIY M?MEKTON'PEMM AND ENVER JURCMENY ACAINST THE
MRR‘.OWE SHALL PI(Y!’BE EXHMJEI’ED B‘{ ONE OfR »oggymclses '!gﬁﬂ%&ﬁ OR BY ANY (MFERFECT

2] SUDGMENT ENYERED
HEEETO& MYANDWRMV!S EXERCISED ON:ONE OR MORE OCCASIONS FROM TIME
?;EE:CESS “'tﬁ! SMEORDWEMW&MOM&SWEMM

5.8 Wateor of Jury Trial. THE PARTIES TO THIS ACREEMENT WANT TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION DR
PROCEEDING TO WHICH THEY MAY BE FARTIES, ARISING JUT OF, [N SONNECTION WITH OR [N ANY WAY
PERTAINING 10, THIS AGREEMENT. [T1S AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD THAT THIS WANER. CONSTITUTES A
WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY OF ALL CLABMS AGAINST ALL PARTIES TO SUGH ACTION OR PROCEEDINGS,
IRCLUDING CLATMS AGAINGT PARTIES WHO ARE NOT PARTIES TO THIS AGRESMENT, THIS WANERIS
KROWIRGLY, WILLINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY IADE.

98 Ssvarabilfty: Walvers. o any pert of this Acveomant 18 it onforcaable, the gt of the Xgreement msy
anioread Tha Bank ratuns SN nghis, e i makes 3 oy afer Sefal, nmmnxmawm.nwma
inler defauil. Any consentor wareer wnder thix Agreement must be in wnling

pA S Aromeys* Foos, Trer Borrower shall reimburse the Bank for any ¢ bie o5t and we' fes mexaved
byﬂwsmﬁmmmnmﬂwwmmwmmm mmwmmwunﬁmﬂmhymﬁﬂw
oher docurnaniy Wmmm%ﬁmﬂmmm emendment, womer, workout™
o mstuchunng under (he: Apreement lnﬂwwﬂﬁa%nwm&mm«dmmmﬂwmsmﬁﬂaﬂo
racover costs and reasonabie abonneys” fees ncurad s connechon with the ksl or athitrelion procesdmg, 95.
delerminad by the courl or srbeirator mmwm«wmwmwummmuw«m
Bankropiey Codw (Tide 11, maummauwmuwusmm o Bank 18 -entiedi e reoover coily
wnd reasonehio afomeys’ fes incunad by he Bak relatad b the fnisenrabsn, g m.w«mmawmm
of the Bank insuch o case ‘i‘ohmmpmmmwm,asuuémmww ‘aticerays’ foea® Includes tha
aliocated costs of ihe Bank's In-housa cournset

$8  Indhvidoad Lighiity, tfthe Bomower Is a naturalperson, the Bank may procead sgainst the Bemrowers busness
andnon-Busness propaity in enfoneing tivs and olher Sgroements refatiig o this loan  IF (e Borrowes rummmp.
8 Bank may procesd agiust the business and non-business property of sach peners! partner of the Borvowar

enforeing B ond other agrosments rstatng b this ko,

9 Jolnt and Saveral Lisbility, If e ormove Donouas 5ign Dy Agyeaminnl, snch Sorrwer apress tat A m oty
:ndﬁsamliyilahﬂnloﬂwﬂankimHsemwmldﬂobhmnmmmuwdedhls#gcmentwdﬂwhuchhabil&ya
ndependent of e obipy of the other Borowers.

610 Senft.

{®} msdmmawr@uant!mamudmmpmlﬂadwlaw.uponmmmﬂdmﬂgm
emniinuance of any event of detmit under s Agmemont the i gythonzed, manymmmmoﬁ'mﬁapp}y
wwwmp«auuaﬁmwwwmwmmw 51 Ohkgatisns owang i ths
Baik, Tiw seboff s ba mmd%h&&mmmmn&mm%ﬁm&um
A i or iy guasanty, end slhough such Dblailona may ba conimgend. or unmstuned: or dencminsted m &

mmdﬂmmmmumw@mmm

] mmmmmmmmmmammwamqmm ny such nelite beng watved by
Borraver {Cn 13 own beha and on behall of eech Obliger} o the fullesl exlent permiisd bylaw  The Bank
Bgrean promplly 16 noldy he Bosmower after any m&mmwpﬂmﬂ poded. uniaver that the fatuns o
simsum nammummwmewmdmmwmapm
Radil JOOMSOEE? - Bredfurd Corp.
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{8 Forthepuposes of tvs parn mpmwwmmmmtwawwm, me or demarsd,
provisionat or fnad, mu;gmmwm;mwm mwmmmawaranyomw%mm
mmmmwamwmmmwmm WM%&W@MQ&NNM
mammummwmmmmmwwa& sgreement or inshrument

Wmmmmmmmmmbh Bank of ang Obtgar,

:;‘:dm?amm s Agreemend and any relsiod secunty or oiher agreements requred by ihls Agreemerd,

(a) mpmmsmmaummmgmmmnm&mwm Boerower cancorning the
oredif;

W repiscerany priorora? o written agroements. bobwnon tho Bank zikd tha Bomower concerning this credd, and

{c) ;ﬁwwmmmeWammmmmmummmmwmmwm
inthe svent of any confied between ths ﬁ@mmsmwmmmmmﬁyﬂmﬁmm Fug
Agremisng wil provart

I mdammrnﬂ:‘n. ﬂggu&wﬁn Endemmrty and hovid the 3“"*""’:‘;%"3;@’" ary foss, liablrty, damages,
, ind costs of any 3ty oF SRt difecily or endirnciby gt &) this Agreement o any document
.m}wmmmmmmmwmsanmmmwwqmmmmammnmw
> ] This

iks pareiil, susskdharios and ol of Thew diociors, oMicers, empls . agants, , SMorntys, Brctassigee, Ths
D e e oS S s, s s T
mmgmmmmmmmmmummmw

%13 mmammwmmwmﬁnmammhMmmsmkmm
Bm,mmwmmmm%mshﬂhamanaaymmwwmbyﬂm&asmmm

mﬁw%w?wmgehwﬂ Nm;nﬁmfmmmwwmgw
mavad, upon the sarlier foceipt or e X5) depoan inbhy g clasu,mmapmpa o
hand.dolvared, brmwmmu{mm:mm Rettangram oF malgramy, whon deiivedan

L8 madlw.mamwzmhmm mwmmmwmﬁmwmmor
Peearing-of any prvimans of this Agreermend.

346 Counterparts. This Agrecnentmayib in as many PaTis 3% racestaty of convenEnt, and by
mdmmmﬁhupmb»mwmwmmmwmm, ammmﬁmmrmwm

S48 ammmmmmmmwum mmmmmamcmﬁyamm'm@u
mwMgmwmmmmmmmmmmW,mangw
ok wredit regonts, mmmwmwwaEﬁMn{n:manimwde repoRt bo cradit
mmmmmwm Failiin perimining Bocrower andior all guaratiors gg g

Lo iskent Wil tise Banks policis and prackoes from B o benn- in effect.
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The Borowar exscutsd e Agrasment a5 of e date stated Bl the top of the frst page, miending 16 reals o0
insrumont execuled undaf E2al,

VSIGNATURES ' v ]

Aakiress whars Fotzes 1o the Bk setobesent Adiress whene notices §o the Bowaiwer &te 19 bo sent

Sonk of Amarica, N A Brolford Cotp )
Fattnngbon - Afln. Document Retention 7070 Dorsey Roed, Suit € Buliding ©
74 Balisteon Park Road Hanower, MD2107E1GTY
Farmungion, T 85032

CT2-815-B8-03

Fedoral mm.m«mmwﬁimmﬁwmmmwm@m The aodiee is not pantof
mmmwgwwmmwmym besiterst. Presgerond tha potice Garaluily.

{)  USAPATRIDTACT NOTICE

Fedord 5 7oquires ol fhanci slsiions (e oblim, yenfy and recurd irfenmaton thal Ideat 23 esch permon who Bpans
amsccowit &f Shans a koan Tive Bank wil 85k for the Botrower's legal fiame, addves, fax 1D cnsiridad F sorat seounty
rumier and oiher sdeniifysy formaton, WMMWW&MBWWMNMWMM
oiber actiona reascebly rrecassary 1o vanfyine wenply of the Bormowsr, guSrantors b oityer refated persans
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{144

SECURITY AGREEMENT
{Multiple Use)

1 THE SECURITY. The undaaignad Breslerd Cop (the "Plednor™) hereby sssigns end grants
ta Dz OF Amenca, NA s subsihznas and afihakss (catectvely, Bank™) a secirly misrsst in the feiewing
viescribed property now owned of heseatier aequirad by Hhe Pledgor ("Calisteral™).

{a) All-astaents; canirect Tights, chatte) paper, malruments, depisiit acsamis, lefber of
eret mghty, paymant intangbles and gencral inkongibtes, mchudmg ) amounis due o the Phedgsi frem a
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10, EINAL, AGREEMENT, BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT EACH PARTY REPRESENTS AND

ASREES THAT: {A) THIS DOCUMENT REPRESENTS THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES
WITH RESPECT TO THE SUSJ ECT MATTER KEREQF, (B) THIS DGW“EM’3UP€R$§DE$ ANY
CORMMITRENT LETTER, TERM SHEET, OR OTHER WRITTEN CUTLINE OF TERMS AND CONDITIONT
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREQF, UNKESS SUCH COMMITMENT LETTER, TERM SHEET,
OR OTHER WRITTEN OWUNEDF TERNS AND CONDITIONS EXFRESSLY PROVIDES YO THE
CONTRARY, (&) THERE ARE MO UNMRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES, AND:D)
THIS Bm“%ﬂk’l KOt BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF ANY PRIOR, CONTEMPORANECUS,

GRAL AGREEMENTS OR UNDERSTANDINGS OF THE PARTIES,
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, C.B. Brechin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Brekford Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(£)) for
the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 22,2011 By: /s/ C.B. Brechin

C.B. Brechin, Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Brekford Corp. (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, C.B. Brechin, Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, certify to my knowledge and in my
capacity as an officer of the Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and,

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of the
dates and for the periods expressed in the Report.

Date: February 22,2011 By: /s/ C.B.Brechin

C.B. Brechin
Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial
Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document.



